. Street Address: L09 Ridge Street ? Historic Name: Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House

Map and Parcel: 29-135 gDate/Period: 18542, c1895

Census Track & Block: 4-339 Style: No ldentifiable Style
Present Owner: Dora Walls and Mabel Jones Height to Cornice:

Address: 409 Ridge Street 1 Height in Stories: 2
Present Use: Residence & Present Zoning: R-3
Original Owner: £1ijah Dunkum o Land Area (sq.ft.): 90° x 206
Original Use: Residence S Assessed Valu {(land + imp.)

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This is the oldest house stil! standing on Ridge Street. It was originally a Federal style, three- bay, single-pile
side-hall-plan house, two stories on a low brick foundation, with two large exterior end chimneys. The original
weather boarding has now been covered with light green asbestos shingles, and one-storesy side wings and a rambling
rear addition have given it a T-shape. Severa! remodelings have left littla original fabric intact. The original
section consists of parlor and side hall on the first level and two bedrooms on the second level. The enclosed
staircase and all of the old mantels were replaced in the early 1900's, and the corner in front of one exterior and
chimney was filled in with a sort of two-storey rectangular bay window to give more light to the hall. One-room
wings were added at each side fairly early, but probably not at the same time. The one- and two=storey rear wing,
built in several stages, covers two bays of the central block. An awkward full-height portico covers the entire
facade of the original two-storey section. The heavy wooden-shingled pediment is supported by four siender square
piers. 1930 photograph shows the same pediment sheltering a two- storey Victorian veranda, the first level slightly
wider than the second. At that time, the weatherboarding was painted white and the trim dark, and the roof was
covered with standing-seam tin. There are medium pitched gable rooves with boxed cornices over the central section
and the side wings, and a variety of shapes over the rear additions. All are now covered with asphalt shingles. The
two exterior end chimneys are of brick laid in stretcher bond with one set of stepped weatherings and narrow o

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

stacks. The large double-sash, six-over-six light windows with architrave trim in the original house were repeated
in the south wing. The north wing has two-over-two windows, and there are several types in the rear wing. There is
a new entrance door under the three-light rectangular transom in the south bay of the facade. The four- paneled door
in the central bay at the second level was not removed when the veranda was. A one-room brick cottage just behind
the house is probably the original 1842 kitchen. The brick, now painted white, is laid in five-course American bond
with mousetooth cornice. t has a steep gable roof, now covered with asphalt shingles, and one largs exterior end
chimney with stepped weathnrxngs The large double~sash windows are six-over-six light with plain trim. The.old
board-and-batten door with iron strap hinges has been replaced in recent vears, and a large rear addition built.

1842 Elijah Dunkum purchased 11 3/k4 acres on ''what is knows as the ridge road leading to Meriwether's Mill" (ACDB
40-68). Tax records indicate that this house was built the same vear, and when a tract xmmedlately to the south was
:old‘1n>]84h, it was described as "adjoining Elijah Dunkum's lot on which is:arecteda frame building' n 1843 D

GRAPHICS

built the handsome brick house a block north later known as the Dice house (demolished 1963), and in 1845 he sold his
original '"frame dwelling house, kitchen,meat house, stable, etc.' with 1.36 acres to Rees Jurey (ACDB 42-276). Jurey's
heirs sold to G. Wallace Spooner in 1861 (ACDB 53-569) . Spooner was the contractor for the additions to the Albemarl
Courthouse. He defaulted on his mortgage, and John L. Cochran bought the house at auction in 1871 (ACDB 66-295). The
Spooners continued to live there, however, and were able to buy it back in 1894 (City DBL4-454). They apparently
added the side and rear wings and the two-storey Victorian veranda. Tax records indicate that much of this construc
ion was circa 1894-95, but some of it was orobably earlier, perhaps in the 1860's. The Spponers owned the house
until 1902. It was purchased by Jury Y. Brown in 1904 (15-223). During the 38 years they lived thers, the Browns
added a rear sleeping porch and a sort of bay window in the corner by the chimney, dug out the basement, brought
the floors in the different sections to a uniform level, and replaced all the mantels and the enclosed staircase.
T.R. and Effie S. Moore bought the house from the Browns in 1942 (DB 112-275) and sold it in 1946 to Willard and
Dorothy C. Quarles (DB 127-201) who again remodeled the house, divided it into three apartments, and replaced the
{ veranda with a full-height portico. The present owners bought the house from Mrs. Quarles in 1957 (DB 203-90) and g
- covered the weatherboardxng wnth a<best0' sh(ngles in 1962. Addxt|onal Deed ReFerences Clty DB 12 361 4 191, 20-3384

COND’T]ONS & City/County Records SOURCES 1877 Ch'ville Map
Good ff Mrs. Mabel Jones

Mrs. Stuart Rothwell (Webb Brown Rothwell)
Mrs. Marion H. Morgan (Elizabeth Brown Morgan)
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STREET ADDRESS: 409 Ridge Street HISTORIC NAME  Duniaum- Spooner-Brown House
MAP 8 PARCEL:: 29-135 DATE / PERIOD : 1842, c1895, c 1947
CENSUS TRACT AND BLOCK:. 4-339 STYLE : No .Identifiable Style
PRESENT ZONING: R-3 ; ~ HEIGHT (fo cornics) OR STORIES. 2 Storeys
ORIGINAL OWNER: Elijah Dunkum DIMENSIONS AND LAND AREA: 90' x 205 (18,540 sq. ft.) A
ORIGINAL USE:  Residence CONDITION ©  Good 4,
PRESENT USE:  Residence SURVEYOR | Bibb : }
PRESENT OWNER @ Dora Walls and Mabel Jones DATE OF SURVEY. Spring 1978

ADDRESS . 409 Ridge Street SOURCES. City/County Records 1877 Ch'ville Map

Mrs. Mabel Jones

Charlottesville, VA
3 Mrs. Stuart Rothwell (Webb Brown Rothwell)

=Rt ==

Mrs. Marion H. Morgan (Elizabeth Brown Morgan)

James Alexander, Recollections of Early Charlot-

tesville
ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This is thé oldest house still standing on Ridge Street. It was originally a Federal style, three-bay, single-

pile side-hall-plan house, two storeys on a low brick foundation, with two large exterior end chimneys. The original
weatherboarding has now been covered with light green asbestos shingles, and one-storey side wings and a rambling rear

addition have given it a T-shape. Several remodelings have have left little original fabric intact. The original

section.consists of parlor and side hall on the first level and two bedrooms on the second level. The enclosed stair
and all of the old mantels were replaced in the early 1900's ~and the corner in front of one exterior end chimmey was
filled in with a sort of two-storey rectangular bay window to give more light to the hall. One-room wings were added

at each side fairly early, but probably not at the same t'me. The one- and two-storey rear wing, built in several

stages, covers two bays of the central block. An awkward full-height portico covers the entire facade of the original
two-storey section. The heavy wooden-shingled pediment is supported by four slender square piers. A 1930 photograph
shows the same pediment sheltering a two-storey Victorian veranda, the first level slightly wider than the second. At
that time, the weatherboarding was painted white and the trim dark, and the roof was covered with standing-seam metal.

There are medium pitched gable roofs with boxed cornices over the central section and side wings, and a variety of
shapes over the rear additions. All are now covered with asphalt shingles. The two exterior end chimneys are of
brick laid in stretcher bond with one set of stepped weatherings and narrow offset stacks. The large double-sash, -

6-over-6 light windowswith architrave trim in the original house were repeated in the south wing. The north wing has

2-over-2 light windows, and there are several types in the rear wing. There is a new emtrance door under the three-

light rectangular transom in the south bay of the facade. The four-paneled door in the central bay at the second level
was not removed when the veranda was. A one-room brick cottage just behind the house is probably the original kitchen.
The brick, now painted white, is laid in five-course American bond with mousetooth cornice. It has a steep gable roof,
now cove:ed with asphalt shingles, and one large exterior end chimney with stepped weatherings. The large double-sash

windows are 6-over-6 light with plain trim. The old board-and-batten door with -iron strap hinges has been replaced
in recent years, and a large rear addition built. :

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

1842 Elijah Dunkum purchased 11 3/4 acres on 'what is known as the tidge road leading to Meriwether's Mill" (ACDB

40-68). Tax records indicate that this house was built the same year, and when a tract immediately to the south was

sold in 1844, it was described as "adjoining Elijah Dunkum's lot on which is erected a frame building”. In 1843 Dunkum

built the handsome brick house a bleock north later known as the Dice house (demolished in 1963), and in 1845 he sold
his original ''frame dwellinghouse kitchen, meat house, stable, etc.” with 1.36 acres to Rees Jurey (ACDB 42-2748).
Jurey's heirs sold to G. Wallace Spooner in 1861 (ACDB 59-569). Spooner was the contractor for the additions to the

Albemarle Courthouse.He defaulted én his mortgage, and John L. Cochran bought the house at auction in 1871 (ACDB 66-295)
The Spooners continued to live there, however, and were able to buy it back in 1894 (City DR 4-454). They apparently

added the side and rear wings and the two-storey Victorian veranda. Tax records indicate that much of this construct-
ion was circa 1894-95, but some of it was probably earlier, perhaps in the 1860's. The Spooners owned the house until

1902. It was purchased by Jury Y. Brown in 1904 OB 15- 223) .During the 38 years they lived there, the Browns added a

rear sleeping porch and a sort of bay window in the corner by the chimmey, dug out the basement, brought the floors in

the different sections to a uniform level, and replaced all the mantels and the enclosed stair. T. R. and Effie

Moore bought the house from the Browns in 1942 (DB 112-275) and sold it in 1946 to Willard and Dorothy C. Quarles (DB
127-201) who again remodeled the house, divided it into three apartments, and replaced the veranda with a full-height

portico. The present owners bought the house from Mrs. Quarles in 1957 (DB 203-50) and covered the weatherboarding
with asbestos shingles in 1962. Additional References: City DB 12-461, 14-191, 20-338.
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DUNKUM-SPOONER-BROWN HOUSE

ARCHITECTURAL DESCRIPTION

This is the oldest house still standing on Ridge Street. It was originally a Federal-style, three-bay, single-pile, side-hall-plan house
of two-storeys on a low brick foundation with two large exterior end wall chimneys. The original weatherboarding has now been
covered with light-green asbestos shingles. One-storey side wings and a rambling rear addition have given it a T-shape. Several
remodelings have left little original fabric intact. The original section consists of a parlor and side hall on the first level and two
bedrooms on the second level. The enclosed stair and all of the old mantels were replaced in the early 1900’s, and the south front
corner was extended by a two-storey rectangular windowed bay to give more light to the hall. Single-story one-room wings were
added to either side of the main mass fairly early in this century, but probably not at the same time as the rectangular bay. The
one- and two-storey rear wing, built in several stages, covers two bays of the central block. A current full-height portico sheltering
the entire front facade of the original two-storey section dates to c. 1950. The heavy wooden-shingled pediment is supported by
four slender square piers. A 1930 photograph shows the same pediment sheltering a two-storey Victorian verandah, the first level
slightly wider than the second. At that time, the weatherboarding was painted white and the trim dark, and the roof was covered
with standing-seam metal. The central mass and side wings have medium-pitched gabled roofs with boxed cornices and there are
a variety of shapes over the rear additions. All roofs are now covered with asphalt shingles. The two exterior end wall chimneys
are of brick laid in stretcher bond with one set of stepped weatherings and narrow offset stacks. The large double-sash, six-over-six
light windows with architrave trim in the original house were repeated in the south wing. The north wing has two-over-two light
windows, and there are several types in the rear wing. There is a new entrance door under the three-light rectangular transom
in the south bay of the facade. The four-paneled door in the central bay at the second level remains despite removal of the
verandah.

A one-room brick cottage just behind the house is probably the original kitchen. The brick, now painted white, is laid in five-
course American bond with a mousetooth cornice. It has a steep gable roof, now covered with asphalt shingles, and one large
exterior end chimney with stepped weatherings. The large windows are six-over-six light with plain trim. The old board-and-
batten door with iron strap hinges was replaced and a large rear addition was built.

HISTORICAL DESCRIPTION

In 1842 Elijah Dunkum purchased 11 3/4 acres on "what is known as the ridge road leading to Meriwether’s Mill" (ACDB 40-68).
Tax records indicate that this house was built the same year, and when a tract immediately to the south was sold in 1844, it was
described as "adjoining Elijah Dunkum’s lot on which is erected a frame building". In 1843 Dunkum built the handsome brick
house a block north later known as the Dice house (demolished in 1963), and in 1843 he sold his original "frame dwellinghouse
kitchen, meat house, stable, etc." with 1.36 acres to Rees Jurey (ACDB 42-276). Jurey’s heirs sold to G.Wallace Spooner in 1861
(ACDB 59-569). He defaulted on his mortgage, and John L. Cochran bought the house at auction in 1871 (ACDB 66-295). The
Spooners continued to live there, however, and were able to buy it back in 1894 (City DB 4-454). They apparently added the side
and rear wings and the two-storey Victorian verandah. Tax records indicate that much of this construction was circa 1894-95, but
some of it was probably earlier, perhaps in the 1860’s. The Spooners owned the house until 1902. It was purchased by Jury Y.
Brown in 1904 (DB 15-223). During the 38 years they lived there, the Browns added a rear sleeping porch and a SE corner bay,
dug out the basement, brought the floors in the different sections to a uniform level, and replaced all the mantels and the enclosed
stair. T.R. and Effie S. Moore bought the house from the Browns in 1942 (DB 112-275) and sold it in 1946 to Willard and
Dorothy C. Quarles (DB 127-201) who again remodeled the house, divided it into three apartments, and replaced the verandah
with a full-height portico. Dora Walls and Mabel Jones bought the house from Mrs. Quarles in 1957 (DB 203-90) and covered
the weatherboarding with asbestos shingles in 1962.

Additional References: City DB 12-461. 14-191, 20-338.

STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

Built in 1842, the Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House was one of the first built on Ridge Street, and it is now the oldest one left.
From 1861 until 1902, it was the home of G. Wallace Spooner and his family. A prominent Charlottesville builder and amateur
architect, Spooner was the contractor for Mt. Zion Baptist Church, Christ Church, and the present portico on the Albemarle County
Courthouse. He was the son of George W. Spooner, one of the builders at the University, and the grandson of John M. Perry,
one of Jefferson’s master builders who worked both on Monticello and on the University. Spooner is believed to have added the
one-storey flanking wings to the Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House, giving it a form similar to that of Montebello, his childhood home
which was built by Perry.

Repeated remodelings have robbed the Dunkum-Spooner-Brown House of much of its original material, but the basic form of the
house remains, and the central block is identifiably a Federal side-hall-plan house. The small brick dependency with mousetooth
cornice and a large chimney probably dates from the 1840’s and is unique in the District.
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